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\ Duncan Tavern was built by Major Joseph Duncan in 1788.
Constructed four years before Kentucky became a state, this
elegant 20-room stone building was by far finer than most
taverns of the day. Rexford Newcomb offers a description of
the tavern in his book, Architecture In 0ld Kentucky. "A two-
story mass, with high basement and attic, this old hostelry
turns a typlcal Georgian frontal pediment toward the public
square. On the roof are two dormers. Double stone steps
with wrought-iron rails lead up to a portal with transom and
side lights. This portal is flanked by pilasters bearing a
neat entablature. Above the portal is a fine Palladian
window and in the frontal pediment a semicircular sunburst
opening." % SRR O

While the tavern was under construction between 1786 and
1788, Duncan apparently lived in the right rear room. All
four of its walls are of rock. A secret panel in a cupboard
there can be lifted to disclose a place where money and
valuables could be hidden. Above a billiard room, a bar,
and two basement kitchens Major Duncan built the main
structure of the building consisting of two stories, each
containing four large rooms and a hall. Above these was a
ballroom in the attic area. As soon as his trade warranted,
Major Duncan added a brick dining room wing next to the
assembly. room; -building . it the.-same height as the rest of
the structure. In the rear wall he placed a Palladian-window
matching the one over the front door.

In the 1890's the tavern building housed a reputable boarding
house.. During the next fifty years it declined to the point
where it became a slum tenement occupied by thirteen
families. Flimsy partitions divided the dining room into
three small rooms.

Folding doors were added between the two assembly rooms.
The doors interfered with and weakened the arch that braced
the floor joists of the two rooms above. This arch was re-
moved and lost. Access to some of the quarters had been
gained by taking apart the cherry-railed stairway and
reversing it. The fanlight window, when broken, was taken
out, boarded over, and covered with stucco like the rest of
the exterior, then painted with red barn paint. Eight .
fine stone- faced fireplaces were boarded up and st
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STATEMENT OF SIA‘G‘NI FICANCE

Major Joseph Duncan built this stone tavern- 1nn in 1788,
fours years before Kentucky became a state. In 1803 it was
described as a '"large and elegant stone building in Paris,
which belonged to Major Duncan and occupied by him as a
tavern, and since his death by Mrs. Duncan, at the sign of
The Goddess of Liberty.'" This twenty-room structure was
much more impressive than most taverns of its period. It
was described by Rexford Newcomb in Architecture In 01d
Kentucky. "A two-story mass, with high basement and attic,
this old hostelry turns a typical Georgian frontal pediment
toward the public square. On the roof are two dormers.
Double stone steps with wrought iron rails lead up to a
portal with transom and side lights. This portal is flanked
by pilasters bearing a neat entablature. Above the portal
is a fine Palladian window' and 1n ‘the - frontal pediment' a
semicircular sunburst opening.

s i o T,

Because of overlapping claims to land in the Blue Grass
region of Kentucky, thousands of suits were filed in the

- Bourbon County Courthouse at Paris, which 'was‘':located only
a very short distance from Duncan Tavern. Many depositions
in these suits were taken in the tavern, and among those
early Kentucky pioneers who gathered at the inn were
Daniel Boone, Simon Kenton, Michael Stoner, James Garrard,
Jack Jouett and others. -

“Much of the social life in the early Blue Grass region
centered around Duncan Tavern, where theatricals were pre-
sented as early as 1808, and where the ballroom was the
scene of many gather1ngs~h,An 0old lease, date 1815, des-
cribes it as '"the old stone building on the square, with
kitchen, billard room, smokehouse, lower stables, etc., and
two partitions to be run across the ballroom."” Under
various names Duncan Tavern was in continuous operation for
more than 150 years.
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(e (% 7 # 7 Description

40 plans were being made to tear down the building.
Responding to an urgent appeal by the Kentucky Society,
Daughters of the American Revolution, the city of Paris gave
it to them on the condition that they restore and maintain it
as a shrine, open to the public. Aided by contributions they
began to restore the building. The stucco on the exterior
walls was removed and the stone work was pointed up with
cement; the eight stone fireplaces which had been boarded up
were opened. When the stucco was removed the outline of the
fanlight was clearly revealed, so it was replaced. A carved
arch was found in a house of the period of Duncan Tavern that
was being razed in Danville, Kentucky. The style of the arch
was in harmony with both the carved arch in the hallway and
the carved mantels, so it was installed, replacing the miss-
ing arch. An unsanitary and unsafe ramshackle wooden wing,
several stories in height, that had been added at the rear,
was razed.

To use the building as a museum, the D.A.R. had to add some
restrooms and and a kitchen for the caretaker, but these are
not shown as part of the original tavern. Nor is the John
Fox Library so represented. It was excavated from a rear
cellar room to house the historical books used by the
organization and to display relics and souvenirs of the local
novelist, John Fox. A narrow covered stairway was added at
the rear to connect the first floor and the parking lot. To
keep it in harmony with the rest of the building it was
enclosed by a wall of handmade brick that was saved from the
old kitchen of the Anne Duncan House which was torn down.
South of and adjoining the Duncan Tavern is the Anne Duncan
House. Built between 1800-1803 of log it was covered by
clapboard. It was also restored and its walls were faced
with old stone from "Fairfield'" which was built by Governor
James Garrard prior to 1786 and was where the first court of
Bourbon County was held. Flanking the building on the north
is the old Bourbon County Court House gate of wrought iron
with surmounting spread eagle, imported from Wales.

A study of the interior reveals the rich timber resources

of the day which were used in its construction. Oak and ash
girders, beams and joists give support to the structure. The
laths are hand-split hickory; the floor of blue ash. There
are numerous hand carved mantels and stone fireplaces. A
small opening was framed in the second floor hall to show the
hand hewn laths and the square-headed nails, which when
available, substituted for wooden pegs in the construction.
Despite the interior changes that occurred over the years,
many of the rooms still have their original hog-hair plaster.

(continued)




Form 10-300a
(July 1969)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

(Continuation Sheet)

STATE

KENTUCKY

COUNTY

BOURBON

FOR NPS USE ONLY

ENTRY NUMBER

1905

on.
AFRT

(Number all entries)

# 7 Description

The Daughters of the American Revolution have carefully
attempted to restore Duncan Tavern to its original condition.
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# 8 Statement of Significance

Sometime shortly after the death of Major Duncan in 1803 his
widow, Anne Maria McLaughlin Duncan, built a house flush
with the walls of the tavern, and moved there with her
children. This house still standing is of log construction
and clapboarded over.

In the 1950's the Kentucky Society of the Daughters of the
American Revolution acquired both buildings and began
restoration, and Duncan Tavern now serves as its state head-
quarters. Now restored expertly and furnished with period
antiques the Tavern serves as a historic shrine, and is

open to the public. The tavern contains a fine historical
and genealogical library dedicated to John Fox, Jr., famed
author and native of Bourbon County. The adjacent '"Anne
Duncan House'" has been restored, but has been covered with
stone from a nearby historic house which was razed. A
memorial garden has been developed in the rear of the tavern.
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\ Duncan Tavern was built by Major Joseph Duncan in 1788.
Constructed four years before Kentucky became a state, this
elegant 20-room stone building was by far finer than most
taverns of the day. Rexford Newcomb offers a description of
the tavern in his book, Architecture In 0ld Kentucky. "A two-
story mass, with high basement and attic, this old hostelry
turns a typlcal Georgian frontal pediment toward the public
square. On the roof are two dormers. Double stone steps
with wrought-iron rails lead up to a portal with transom and
side lights. This portal is flanked by pilasters bearing a
neat entablature. Above the portal is a fine Palladian
window and in the frontal pediment a semicircular sunburst
opening." % SRR O

While the tavern was under construction between 1786 and
1788, Duncan apparently lived in the right rear room. All
four of its walls are of rock. A secret panel in a cupboard
there can be lifted to disclose a place where money and
valuables could be hidden. Above a billiard room, a bar,
and two basement kitchens Major Duncan built the main
structure of the building consisting of two stories, each
containing four large rooms and a hall. Above these was a
ballroom in the attic area. As soon as his trade warranted,
Major Duncan added a brick dining room wing next to the
assembly. room; -building . it the.-same height as the rest of
the structure. In the rear wall he placed a Palladian-window
matching the one over the front door.

In the 1890's the tavern building housed a reputable boarding
house.. During the next fifty years it declined to the point
where it became a slum tenement occupied by thirteen
families. Flimsy partitions divided the dining room into
three small rooms.

Folding doors were added between the two assembly rooms.
The doors interfered with and weakened the arch that braced
the floor joists of the two rooms above. This arch was re-
moved and lost. Access to some of the quarters had been
gained by taking apart the cherry-railed stairway and
reversing it. The fanlight window, when broken, was taken
out, boarded over, and covered with stucco like the rest of
the exterior, then painted with red barn paint. Eight .
fine stone- faced fireplaces were boarded up and st
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STATEMENT OF SIA‘G‘NI FICANCE

Major Joseph Duncan built this stone tavern- 1nn in 1788,
fours years before Kentucky became a state. In 1803 it was
described as a '"large and elegant stone building in Paris,
which belonged to Major Duncan and occupied by him as a
tavern, and since his death by Mrs. Duncan, at the sign of
The Goddess of Liberty.'" This twenty-room structure was
much more impressive than most taverns of its period. It
was described by Rexford Newcomb in Architecture In 01d
Kentucky. "A two-story mass, with high basement and attic,
this old hostelry turns a typical Georgian frontal pediment
toward the public square. On the roof are two dormers.
Double stone steps with wrought iron rails lead up to a
portal with transom and side lights. This portal is flanked
by pilasters bearing a neat entablature. Above the portal
is a fine Palladian window' and 1n ‘the - frontal pediment' a
semicircular sunburst opening.
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Because of overlapping claims to land in the Blue Grass
region of Kentucky, thousands of suits were filed in the

- Bourbon County Courthouse at Paris, which 'was‘':located only
a very short distance from Duncan Tavern. Many depositions
in these suits were taken in the tavern, and among those
early Kentucky pioneers who gathered at the inn were
Daniel Boone, Simon Kenton, Michael Stoner, James Garrard,
Jack Jouett and others. -

“Much of the social life in the early Blue Grass region
centered around Duncan Tavern, where theatricals were pre-
sented as early as 1808, and where the ballroom was the
scene of many gather1ngs~h,An 0old lease, date 1815, des-
cribes it as '"the old stone building on the square, with
kitchen, billard room, smokehouse, lower stables, etc., and
two partitions to be run across the ballroom."” Under
various names Duncan Tavern was in continuous operation for
more than 150 years.
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(e (% 7 # 7 Description

40 plans were being made to tear down the building.
Responding to an urgent appeal by the Kentucky Society,
Daughters of the American Revolution, the city of Paris gave
it to them on the condition that they restore and maintain it
as a shrine, open to the public. Aided by contributions they
began to restore the building. The stucco on the exterior
walls was removed and the stone work was pointed up with
cement; the eight stone fireplaces which had been boarded up
were opened. When the stucco was removed the outline of the
fanlight was clearly revealed, so it was replaced. A carved
arch was found in a house of the period of Duncan Tavern that
was being razed in Danville, Kentucky. The style of the arch
was in harmony with both the carved arch in the hallway and
the carved mantels, so it was installed, replacing the miss-
ing arch. An unsanitary and unsafe ramshackle wooden wing,
several stories in height, that had been added at the rear,
was razed.

To use the building as a museum, the D.A.R. had to add some
restrooms and and a kitchen for the caretaker, but these are
not shown as part of the original tavern. Nor is the John
Fox Library so represented. It was excavated from a rear
cellar room to house the historical books used by the
organization and to display relics and souvenirs of the local
novelist, John Fox. A narrow covered stairway was added at
the rear to connect the first floor and the parking lot. To
keep it in harmony with the rest of the building it was
enclosed by a wall of handmade brick that was saved from the
old kitchen of the Anne Duncan House which was torn down.
South of and adjoining the Duncan Tavern is the Anne Duncan
House. Built between 1800-1803 of log it was covered by
clapboard. It was also restored and its walls were faced
with old stone from "Fairfield'" which was built by Governor
James Garrard prior to 1786 and was where the first court of
Bourbon County was held. Flanking the building on the north
is the old Bourbon County Court House gate of wrought iron
with surmounting spread eagle, imported from Wales.

A study of the interior reveals the rich timber resources

of the day which were used in its construction. Oak and ash
girders, beams and joists give support to the structure. The
laths are hand-split hickory; the floor of blue ash. There
are numerous hand carved mantels and stone fireplaces. A
small opening was framed in the second floor hall to show the
hand hewn laths and the square-headed nails, which when
available, substituted for wooden pegs in the construction.
Despite the interior changes that occurred over the years,
many of the rooms still have their original hog-hair plaster.
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The Daughters of the American Revolution have carefully
attempted to restore Duncan Tavern to its original condition.
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# 8 Statement of Significance

Sometime shortly after the death of Major Duncan in 1803 his
widow, Anne Maria McLaughlin Duncan, built a house flush
with the walls of the tavern, and moved there with her
children. This house still standing is of log construction
and clapboarded over.

In the 1950's the Kentucky Society of the Daughters of the
American Revolution acquired both buildings and began
restoration, and Duncan Tavern now serves as its state head-
quarters. Now restored expertly and furnished with period
antiques the Tavern serves as a historic shrine, and is

open to the public. The tavern contains a fine historical
and genealogical library dedicated to John Fox, Jr., famed
author and native of Bourbon County. The adjacent '"Anne
Duncan House'" has been restored, but has been covered with
stone from a nearby historic house which was razed. A
memorial garden has been developed in the rear of the tavern.




